LEWIS & CLARK COLLEGE Graduate School of Education and Counseling



School Psychology Program Practicum Handbook

2019-2020

Kate Jaspers, PhD, NCSP Assistant Professor of School Psychology Program Co-Director Elena Diamond, PhD, NCSP

Associate Professor of School Psychology

Program Co-Director and

Clinical Coordinator

Peter Mortola, PhD
Professor of School Psychology and
Counseling Psychology

Table of Contents

LC-SPSY Practicum Experience	3
What is the Process of Securing a Practicum Placement?	3
What Activities are Required During Practicum?	4
What are the Candidate's Responsibilities?	4
What is the Role of the Practicum Site Supervisor?	4
What are the Needed Qualifications of the Site Supervisor?	4
What is the Role of the LC Practicum Instructor?	5
What are the Legal and Ethical Considerations of Practicum?	5
LC-SPSY Program Evaluation Plan: Practicum CCE	6
LC-SPSY and the NASP Domains	7
LC-SPSY Practicum Handbook Appendix	8
LC-SPSY Practicum Site Agreement	9
LC-SPSY Practicum Summary of Hours Report	10
LC-SPSY Practicum Daily Log	10
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.1 Assessment and Intervention	12
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.2 Consultation	14
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.3 Counseling Presentation	17
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.4 Counseling Report	179
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.4 Practicum Site Supervisor Evaluation of Candidate	20
LC-SPSY Practicum Evaluation of Site and Supervisor by Candidate	24
LC-SPSY Practicum Permission to Record	24
LC-SPSY Transition Form 3: Practicum Completion and Internship Approval	25

2



LC-SPSY Practicum Experience

Welcome to your LC-SPSY Practicum Year! Practicum is an important year-long experience in which you will gain knowledge, skills and dispositions important to the profession through observing, assisting, and leading activities in the school setting. The LC-SPSY Practicum (SPSY 580) is a year-long concentrated field experience for candidates. Candidates generally participate in the practicum during their second year of the program and complete practicum before their internship year. The practicum experience is designed as an opportunity for candidates to develop and practice counseling, consultation, and assessment skills in a supervised field placement.

By the time you reach practicum, you will have participated in course-based fieldwork in previous courses (e.g., SPSY 502 and CPSY 514). There are also a number of other courses that will be completed during the practicum year, including a series on consultation and prevention and the completion of a series on assessment. Completion of practicum and all required coursework is necessary for enrollment in the Internship course (SPSY 582). This Handbook is your guide to the process of securing and completing a successful Practicum experience.

Candidates are expected to remain at their placement for the academic school year, generally between the first week of September through mid-June. Candidates may also be required to attend trainings or meetings at their practicum site prior to the start of the school year, per district protocols. Candidates are therefore required to attend SPSY 580 Practicum in School Psychology class from the first week in September through mid-June. Candidates are required to begin practicum in the fall term and continue with the same supervision site and class throughout the school year whenever possible. Candidates are required to complete 450 hours of work at the site and in practicum class. Typically candidates can expect to spend about 10 hours a week at their school site(s).

What is the Process of Securing a Practicum Placement?

The School Psychology Program at Lewis & Clark strongly encourages placement of candidates into schools and districts whose students represent multiple aspects of diversity based on ethnicity, race, socioeconomic status, gender, exceptionalities, language, religion, sexual orientation, and geographical area. The Program Clinical Coordinator will facilitate such placements with the Lewis & Clark Office of Strategic Partnerships and Clinical Placements. Beginning the spring term preceding practicum, the Clinical Coordinator and the Office of Strategic Partnerships and Clinical Placements will investigate site options and work to secure placements for the year-long, part-time practicum field experience. A K-12 school setting is chosen with a primary supervisor who is a licensed school psychologist according to the following steps:

- 1) Candidates will be asked to rank order preferences for districts in which they would like to be placed.
- 2) From the list of these preferences, the Placement Office and Clinical Coordinator draft a list of potential sites and supervisors they believe will likely be the most effective and supportive for the practicum experience.
- 3) The Placement Office will submit a request to the appropriate school district on the candidate's behalf.
- 4) Once a supervisor has been identified and the Clinical Coordinator verifies that the supervisor meets LC and NASP requirements, the Placement Office will contact the candidate via their lclark.edu email address to notify of a pending placement. Once the candidate receives this notification, they will need to:
 - Within 24 hours of receiving the notification of a pending placement contact the potential supervisor and schedule a meeting as soon as possible.
 - Notify the Placement Office (lcplacements@lclark.edu) and Clinical Coordinator (Dr. Elena Diamond at ediamond@lclark.edu) of the scheduled date of that meeting.
 - Within 24 hours of the meeting email the Placement Office with a brief summary of the meeting.
- 5) The Placement Office will follow up with the potential supervisor to determine whether the supervisor would like to commit to the placement.
- 6) The Placement Office will notify the candidate and the School Psychology faculty when the placement is confirmed. The candidate will follow up with the supervisor within 24 hours of this notification to thank them and discuss next steps.

What Activities are Required During Practicum?

You will be under the supervision and direction of your site supervisor during these experiences.

Fall Semester

- Observe, assist, and lead in counseling sessions with individuals and groups within the school setting
- Observe, assist, and consult in a special needs classroom (or other classroom chosen by your site supervisor)
- Attend, observe, and contribute to school-based behavioral or instructional consultation meetings (e.g., Student Study Team, Individual Education Program, Special Education Team, District-wide training opportunities)
- Observe, assist and lead in teaching and/or classroom presentations within the school setting (e.g., Social Skills or Conflict Resolution lessons)
- Observe your supervisor in assessment and consultation tasks as available
- Keep an hourly log of all activities
- Receive one hour of weekly individual supervision from your site supervisor and attend the SPSY 580 class for additional supervision
- Demonstrate appropriate ethical and professional behaviors.

Spring and Summer Semesters

- Continue with activities listed above for spring and summer semesters
- Observe, assist and lead in behavioral or instructional consultation with parents, teachers, and other school personnel
- Observe, assist and lead in assessment activities coordinated by your campus and site supervisors
- Take opportunities to research student problems and the efficacy of your work with them

What are the Candidate's Responsibilities?

In addition to successfully completing all the requirements of the practicum listed above, the following responsibilities are required of Lewis & Clark candidates:

- Participating at the site: candidates are to provide regularly scheduled hours to the site and keep in regular contact with the site supervisor. They are to work in close and supervised contact with both the site supervisor and the LC practicum supervisor.
- Keeping records: candidates are required to use the forms in the appendix to keep track of hours
 and activities while on site. These forms should be available to supervisors and should be saved
 as part of your professional portfolio.
- Attending class: candidates are required to attend the weekly, three hour, SPSY 580 class as long
 as they are working at their practicum site and fulfill the obligations and requirements of that
 class as described in the syllabus.

What is the Role of the Practicum Site Supervisor?

Site supervisors provide an immense service in supervising candidates from Lewis & Clark. Site supervisors must be willing and able to provide the following:

- Assist the candidate in understanding norms and becoming integrated into the school culture.
- Provide experiences that are appropriate for the candidate's skill level and that match the requirements of the practicum listed above.
- Observe the candidate in practicum activities, provide regular feedback, evaluate the candidate using the practicum CCE and help develop learning goals.
- Review and sign off on the candidate's record keeping and provide feedback through the end-of-semester evaluations of the candidate.
- Provide ongoing supervision including the one hour of individual supervision that is required weekly.
- Communicate with Lewis & Clark faculty as needed, keeping in close contact with the faculty instructor throughout the year.

What are the Needed Qualifications of the Site Supervisor?

The following qualifications are required of site supervisors of candidates in practicum:

• An Ed.S., Masters or doctoral degree, state licensure/certification as a school psychologist, and at least 3 years of post-degree practice. If the primary supervisor agrees, additional time may be spent with other professionals within the school system. We require verification of the primary supervisor's license/certification and resume for our files. This information will be collected by the Lewis & Clark Placement Office.

- Adequate training and experience in supervising students. In lieu of previous experience, supervisors are asked to stay in close communication with the Lewis & Clark practicum instructor and/or Lewis & Clark Clinical Coordinator.
- Familiarity with and implementation of the Code of Ethics published by the National Association of School Psychologists.
- Familiarity with the Lewis & Clark School Psychology Practicum Handbook.

What is the Role of the LC Practicum Instructor?

As a representative of Lewis & Clark College, the faculty instructor provides group supervision for candidate. The practicum instructor is an additional source of support for the candidate. If problems arise on site, the instructor serves as a liaison between the site supervisor and the candidate. In rare cases, a faculty instructor may ask a candidate to leave a site and discontinue their practicum until issues have been resolved satisfactorily. In addition to weekly meetings with candidate, faculty instructors also:

- Communicate regularly with the site supervisor.
- Maintain brief supervision notes regarding attendance, discussion topics, and concerns.
- Visit candidate sites twice a year or as needed.
- Review candidate evaluations and assign course credit.

What are the Legal and Ethical Considerations of Practicum?

Candidates are expected to be familiar with and to practice within the codes of ethics for school psychologists as outlined by NASP (see nasponline.com). The following are a few pertinent points regarding ethics:

- The basic assumption underlying all agreements between candidates and sites is to ensure the welfare of students. School psychology ethical principles mandate that we "do no harm."
- Dual role relationships are to be avoided. Therefore, it is inappropriate to engage in relationships other than therapeutic ones with your students. As such, candidates are not permitted to use their personal vehicles to transport students.
- It is vital that you keep your on-site supervisor aware of any high-risk situations, such as students who may be experiencing abuse or severe mental health issues.
- In Oregon, school psychologists are not allowed to disclose a person's HIV status without written permission.
- Practicum can be stressful. Sometimes candidates find themselves in emotional turmoil resulting from
 listening to the concerns of so many people. If this should happen, address it with your on-site supervisor
 and/or your college supervisor. Next, seek out your own therapy to resolve your issues. Finally, if you
 continue to find yourself distressed, it may be appropriate to limit or suspend your practicum.
- If you are concerned about the emotional state of another candidate: first, approach them directly and express your concern. If you continue to be concerned about their welfare and believe their campus supervisor is unaware of the problem, discuss it with their campus supervisor.
- Once you become aware of an ethical concern, discuss it with your supervisor or bring up the issue in your
 practicum class. Making ethical decisions involves consultation and using advice pooled from numerous
 sources.
- Be aware of the laws affecting your practice of school psychology.
- Discuss the limits of confidentiality with students during your first meeting. These limits include:
 - a. You are mandated to report child abuse or neglect.
 - b. You will need to break confidentiality if you believe that the student will be harmful to themselves or others.
 - c. The courts may mandate you to report to them.
 - d. Parents have the right to view all educational records.
 - e. In Oregon, children over 14 years of age have the right to be treated without parental consent, providing the parents are notified as soon as it is therapeutically feasible. You must also follow school district guidelines, which may include gaining parental permission to speak with any student, regardless of age.
 - f. notify all students that you are a practicum student and receiving supervision.

Section

LC-SPSY Program Evaluation Plan: Practicum CCE

During a candidate's practicum year, we use the *LC-SPSY Practicum Comprehensive Candidate Evaluation (CCE)* to view individual and collective progress toward meeting program goals. We also use it to determine if candidates are making adequate progress toward meeting program goals; what knowledge, skills and dispositions have been adequately mastered and which remain to be learned; and if a candidate is ready to move to the next stage in the program (e.g. from practicum year into internship year). In this evaluation, program faculty review the candidate's performance from a number of different perspectives:

- The candidate's practicum year performance at their public school-based practicum site is
 reviewed by program faculty through data collected on the LC-SPSY Practicum Site Supervisor
 Evaluation of Candidate Rubric. This rubric is important for both candidate evaluation as well as
 program evaluation. It allows program faculty to see both the candidate's progress toward
 competency in NASP domains as well as the effectiveness of instruction regarding these NASP
 domains in the program through the eyes of a non-program related supervisor who is a
 practitioner in the field;
- 2. The candidate's practicum .coursework is reviewed by program faculty through data collected in the LC-SPSY Practicum Year CCE rubrics. These rubrics are used to collect candidate performance data from a set of portfolio materials and comprehensive assignments in the areas of assessment, consultation, and direct service/counseling, as well as data from the LC-SPSY Practicum Site Supervisor Evaluation of Candidate Rubric. The three comprehensive assignments represented in these rubrics are used as the culminating projects in three important strands of coursework in the practicum year of the LC-SPSY program: the assessment/intervention sequence, the consultation sequence, and the practicum class sequence in which counseling is addressed. The LC-SPSY Practicum CCE serves as evidence for NASP Key Assessment #3, detailed in the School Psychology Program Handbook.

The aggregated information from all candidates' *LC-SPSY Practicum Year CCE* provides the program with information for continual improvement in regards to how well our candidates are meeting the goals we set for them. This aggregated data also informs our decisions as to what we need to change in the program to help them achieve these goals. Rubrics, instructions, and details regarding the *LC-SPSY Practicum Year CCE* are found in the appendix.



LC-SPSY and the NASP Domains

The following NASP training domains will be addressed in the SPSY 580 weekly seminars via assigned readings, class discussions and other activities. In addition, site supervisors will use these domains to evaluate candidate work during practicum.

10 NASP Domains of Practice

Domain 2.1: Data-Based Decision Making and Accountability

School psychologists have knowledge of varied models and methods of assessment and data collection for identifying strengths and needs, developing effective services and programs, and measuring progress and outcomes.

Domain 2.2: Consultation and Collaboration

School psychologists have knowledge of varied models and strategies of consultation, collaboration, and communication applicable to individuals, families, groups, and systems and methods to promote effective implementation of services.

Domain 2.3: Interventions and Instructional Support to Develop Academic Skills

School psychologists have knowledge of biological, cultural, and social influences on academic skills; human learning, cognitive, and developmental processes; and evidence-based curricula and instructional strategies.

Domain 2.4: Interventions and Mental Health Services to Develop Social and Life Skills

School psychologists have knowledge of biological, cultural, developmental, social influences on behavior and emotional impacts on learning and life skills, and evidence-based strategies to promote social-emotional functioning and mental health.

Domain 2.5: School-Wide Practices to Promote Learning

School psychologists have knowledge of school and systems structure, organization, and theory; general and special education; technology resources; and evidence-based school practices that promote learning and mental health.

Domain 2.6: Preventive and Responsive Services

School psychologists have knowledge of principles and research related to resilience and risk factors in learning and mental health, services in schools and communities to support multitiered prevention, and evidence-based strategies for effective crisis response.

Domain 2.7: Family-School Collaboration Services

School psychologists have knowledge of principles and research related to family systems, strengths, needs and culture; evidence-based strategies to support family influences on children's learning and mental health; and strategies to develop collaboration between families and schools.

Domain 2.8: Diversity in Development and Learning

School psychologists have knowledge of individual differences, abilities, disabilities, and other diverse student characteristics; principles and research related to diversity factors for children, families, and schools, including factors related to culture, context, and individual differences; and evidence-based strategies to enhance services and address potential influences related to diversity.

Domain 2.9: Research and Program Evaluation

School psychologists have knowledge of research design, statistics, measurement, varied data collection and analysis techniques, and program evaluation sufficient for understanding research and interpreting data in applied settings.

Domain 2.10: Legal, Ethical, and Professional Practice

School psychologists have knowledge of the history and foundations of school psychology; multiple service models and methods; ethical, legal, and professional standards; and other factors related to professional identity and effective practice as school psychologists

LC-SPSY Practicum Handbook Appendix

LC-SPSY Practicum Site Agreement

With this agreement, the Practicum Candidate and the Site Supervisor(s) commit to fulfilling the obligations of the School Psychology Practicum as outlined in the School Psychology Practicum Handbook. The agreement will be effective from the first week of the school year at the Practicum Site until the end of the school year in June for approximately 8-10 hours of supervised practicum experience each week. Your signature on this form indicates that you have read, understand, and agree to the responsibilities of both parties as outlined in the School Psychology Practicum Handbook.

Section One (to be filled out by Candidate)
LC-SPSY Practicum Candidate (please print)
Name of Practicum Site
Name of Primary Site Supervisor
Primary Site Supervisor's phone
Primary Site Supervisor's email
☐ I have attached a copy of my Professional Liability Insurance documentation.
Signature of Practicum Candidate/Date
Section Two (to be filled out by Site Supervisor)
Primary Site Supervisor's Years of Post-Master School/Clinical Experience
I have responded to the Lewis and Clark Placement Office (lcplacements@lclark.edu) with my license and employment information.
Signature of Primary Site Supervisor/Date
Section Three (to be filled out by LC-SPSY Clinical Coordinator) The original of this Practicum Site Agreement must be returned to the LC-SPSY Clinical Coordinator who will
place it in the Candidate's file (A copy should be kept by the Site Supervisor and another copy should be kept by the
Candidate).
LC-SPSY Clinical Coordinator/Date

LC-SPSY Practicum Summary of Hours Report

Practicum Candidate's Name			
Site and Supervisor		-	
On this sheet, total the number of hours you have recordenearest half-hour and keep a copy for your own profession		PSY Practicum D	aily Log. Please round to
	Fall	Spring/ Summer	Year total
Counseling (10 hours required per term, includes observing and participating in ongoing and drop-in individual and group sessions)			
Classroom (25 hours required per term, includes observing or participating in classroom activities or student assistance individually or in small groups)			
Consultation & meetings (20 hours required per term, includes observing or participating in meetings with teachers, parents and/or other team members to problem solve academic or behavioral issues; collecting and presenting data; implementing interventions)			
Assessment (10 hours required per term, includes observing or administering, scoring, interpreting, writing up elements of psycho-educational evaluation)			
Other (research, design, preparation, case notes, misc. meetings, observations, file reviews, interviews, etc.)			
Site Supervision (minimum of 30 hours)			
LC Supervision Class (minimum of 80 hours)			
TOTALS			(450 minimum)
Fall: Practicum Candidate's signature		Date	
Primary Site Supervisor signature	Date		
LC Supervisor signature	Date		
Spring/Summer: Practicum Candidate's signature			Date
Primary Site Supervisor signature	Date		
LC Supervisor signature	Date	- <u></u>	

LC-SPSY Practicum Daily Log

Candidate's Name_	 -
Practicum Site	

Date	Activity (e.g. Counseling, Consultation, Assessment, Interventions, Class Observations, Supervision, Other)	SpEd or RegEd; Grade Level	Notes

LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.1 Assessment and Intervention

The SPSY 547 instructor will evaluate the practicum student's assessment of a child that will include information on background information, cognitive, educational, social, emotional, and adaptive data. Course descriptions show that practicum students will learn all parts of working through a full psycho-educational assessment, including a written report that includes background information, interviews and observations, formal assessments and interpretations of data, interventions, and efficacy of data. The practicum student will find a volunteer child or adolescent to assess; these results will not be distributed to parents or the child's school, but rather used only for learning purposes. Those candidates with a mean score of 2.0 or higher are allowed to move on to Internship.

Rubric: Assessment/Intervention Report

	Needs Improvement = 1	Sufficient = 2	Exemplary = 3	Score
3.1.1	Background information (School, family, health) and reason for referral are not sufficiently included.	Background information (school, family, health) and reason for referral are included and provide a sufficient overview of the child's background as well as the reason for referral.	Background information (school, family, health) and reason for referral are included. School history includes a history of educational placements; specific responses to interventions; attendance and disciplinary history; and results of previous testing, including accountability tests. Family history includes a description of with whom a child lives, the support for education at home, and other information pertinent to the child's functioning at school. A health history included visual/auditory acuity, any health issues which impact learning, any current medications, and any diagnoses	
3.1.2	Interviews are not sufficiently included.	Information from interview with either the teacher or the parent is included.	which impact learning. Interviews with parent(s), teacher(s) and child are included and provide a description of how each view of how the child is doing.	
3.1.3	Observations are not sufficiently included.	Observations performed during assessment process are included.	Observations performed during assessment process are included and are used to inform next steps of the assessment process.	
3.1.4	The candidate is unable to choose appropriate formal assessment tools to use for all areas.	The candidate chooses appropriate assessment tools based on individual child characteristics.	The candidate chooses appropriate assessment tools for both the child's individual characteristics and the environment in which the child learns.	
3.1.5	The candidate scores the instruments incorrectly.	The candidate scores the instruments accurately and scores are included in the report.	The candidate scores the instruments accurately and appropriate scores are included in the report, appropriately interpreted and explained.	
3.1.6	The candidate only reports scores without correct interpretation.	The candidate reports results with adequate interpretation to show strengths and weaknesses.	The candidate is able to integrate all data in the report into a single picture of the whole child.	
3.1.7	The candidate develops interventions that are not specifically intended for the child.	The candidate develops some interventions for the specific child.	The candidate develops a comprehensive set of interventions for home and school which will address the needs of the child as well as the reason for referral.	

3.1.8	Technical qualities are	The candidate writes a report	The candidate writes a report that is
	insufficiently	that is clear, concise, and yet	well-organized, technically correct,
	addressed.	thorough. Good writing	addresses the referral question,
		skills are used.	addresses all aspects of the
			evaluation process, and addresses
			the efficacy of the
			assessment/intervention process.

		assessment/intervention process.	
Three goals from KA3.1 regarding together:	assessment and intervention for	internship year created by faculty/candi	date
1)			
2)			
3)			
Student Signature:	Date:		
Faculty Signature:	Date:		

LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.2 Consultation

Instructors from SPSY 574 will use the following rubric to determine and review skill development of candidates in the area of consultation, specifically addressing the following: background information, stages of the problem-solving process, specific interventions and efficacy, and assessment data as needed. Also included will be reflections on the working relationships developed, the communication processes, and feedback from the site supervisor. Those candidates with a mean score of 2.0 or higher are allowed to move on to Internship.

	Does Not Meet $= 0$	Developing = 1	Meets = 2	Exceeds $= 3$
3.2.1 Structure/ Organization 3-ring binder, sections labeled, includes cover page, 2nd page, and title page; Project is fully redacted.	Not Included Information not redacted	Partially Complete Information not fully redacted	Complete & Correct; fully redacted, and report indicates that name/information has been changed	
3.2.2 Preface/ Abstract (approx. ½ page)	Abstract not included	Abstract is present but is vague or incomplete; may leave out key information	Includes a 1-paragraph summary of entire project, including 1-2 sentences about each section	Complete and extremely well written; similar in quality to that found in a peer-reviewed journal
3.2.3 Introduction/ Background Introduction describing general problem, list of procedures, description of the client/subject, setting, etc. (incl. consideration of culture, lang., other individual or systemic factors).	Introduction/ background is not included	Provides vague or incomplete description of problem, procedures, background, subject/setting, context, what issue will be addressed, and why it is important	Provides an adequate description of problem, procedures, background, subject/setting, context, what issue will be addressed, and why it is important	Is exceptionally well-written; includes 3+ peer-reviewed references of others who have targeted a similar behavior; includes in-depth consideration of client and contextual factors
3.2.4 Problem Identification Description of PII; also includes establishing objectives/goals, problem definition/specification, and data collection procedures	Project does not include a description of participant/ setting, behavior, measurement procedure, and method of interobserver agreement	Descriptions of participant/setting, behavior, measurement procedure, and method of interobserver agreement are vague or incomplete; operational definition is present but incomplete or not observable	Descriptions of interview, participant/setting, behavior, and measurement procedure, are complete, including a thorough operational definition Measurement technique is linked to target behavior	Descriptions of participant (incl. assets/strengths), setting, beh., measurement procedure are exceptional; Measurement technique is reliable, valid, and ideal for target behavior; Also includes consideration of interobserver agreement or reliability of assessment/ measurement technique

3.2.5 Problem Analysis Description of PAI; Analysis phase: summary of data collected, hypothesized function, objectives/goals clarified. Plan Design phase: summary of intervention (including ABCs, hypothesized function/s, who will administer, integrity, complete description of intervention, any changes made) Experimental Design	Description of Problem Analysis and Design not included	Analysis and Plan are included but incomplete; Does not fully explore antecedent/consequent conditions or function that tie to intervention; Plan design is disconnected from research or from data on target behavior and/or analysis.	Descriptions of phases are complete, accurate, thorough; integrity data discussed; multiple ant.& consequence incl; design justified/ explained; Intervention clearly linked to research & hypothesized function; hyp. function(s) clearly stated; Intervention is natural match to target beh. and analysis, feasible	Is also exceptionally well-written and includes a design that is more advanced than AB design (e.g., multiple baseline; ABAB) Includes input from parent and student, as appropriate
3.2.6 Plan Implementation	Not included	Vague, incomplete, or partially correct	Describes logistics and act of plan implementation, including data collected; teacher check-in; any changes made to plan	Thorough and extremely well written
3.2.7 Results Graph	Graph is inaccurate or not included	Accurate but does not meet formatting typically found in single-subject research	Accurate, includes dates on x-axis, and matches formatting of single-case design research	
3.2.8 Use of visual analysis Quantitative description of results; Goal attainment and effectiveness discussed	Visual analysis missing or shows fundamental misconception of data interpretation	Visual analysis is vague, incomplete or partially correct; goal attainment/effectivene ss not clearly stated	Visual analysis includes thorough and accurate description of level, trend, variability, immediacy of change, and overlap, including quantitative results when appropriate; includes effectiveness and goal attainment	Also includes comparison of similar phases; narrative is of similar quality to that found in peer- reviewed journal; Outlying data are discussed
3.2.9 Plan Evaluation/Discussion Summary of Plan Evaluation interview; discussion of outcomes; discussion of process	Not included	Vague or incomplete or does not clearly answer each question	Thoroughly analyzes both the <i>process</i> of consultation and outcomes specific to this case; includes intervention's strengths/weaknesses, other procedures that might have been effective, tie to research	Thorough and extremely well written Thoroughly addresses generalization/transfer/maintenance/fading as appropriate
3.2.10 References	Not included	Included but incomplete (<3 articles), not in APA style, or not peer- reviewed	Complete with at least 3 peer-reviewed articles, accurate, in APA style	Complete, accurate, thorough, in APA style, and exceeding required number of citations
3.2.11 Appendices/ Support Documents Graphs (if not included prev), Sample Data	Not included	Partially complete	Complete	Complete and also includes integrity data collection sheets

Coll.Sheet(s), Copies of				Includes consent in
≥ 3 peer-reviewed				blue/black pen
research articles, Treat				_
Accept. Form, Form.				Includes completed
Assemnt Form, Copy of				Behavior Pathways
each Interview,				•
Consent, Log Sheets,				
Behavior Pathway				
(optional)				
3.2.12 Writing/	Quality of writing,	A number of grammar,	Project was well-written,	Project was
Logistics	spelling,	usage, and mechanical	organized (with	extraordinarily
	punctuation, and	errors, and/or errors	headings), includes few	written, with clear
Quality of Writing;	grammatical errors	with APA style;	errors; and is written in	voice and style. Very
Grammar, Usage, and	significantly	inconsistent or	APA style	well organized, with
Mechanics; APA style	interfere with	minimal organization		virtually no error, in
	meaning and			APA style
	readability			
TTI 1 C 17.12.2	1: 1 6		by feaulty/aendidata togetha	

Three goals from KA3.2 re	egarding consultation fo	or internship year crea	ated by faculty/can	didate together:	
2)					
3)					
Student Signature:		Date:	 Date:		

LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.3 Counseling Case Class Presentation

Candidates will complete a counseling project over the course of their practicum experience. The counseling project requirements could be fulfilled by conducting group or individual counseling. The project can be time-specific (e.g., an 8-week social skills group) or ongoing (e.g., meet weekly with a student who has psychological services listed on their IEP over the course of the year). The candidate can run the sessions solo, or co-lead the sessions (e.g., with a supervisor, school counselor, another practicum student). The project should be with the same student(s) over the course of several weeks (as opposed to drop in counseling with rotating students). The candidate will talk with their site supervisor to identify a counseling project that meets the needs of the school/students and aligns with the candidate's interests and skill development. Following the completion of the counseling project, candidates will present their counseling case to the class. The presentation will include an overview of the case including the items detailed in the rubric below. The Practicum instructor will complete this rubric and go over the results with each candidate, particularly noting candidate strengths and areas for further development. The candidate's areas of strength and of needed improvement will also be highlighted. Those candidates with a mean score of 2.0 or higher are allowed to move on to Internship.

Domain	Needs Improvement = 1	Sufficient = 2	Exemplary = 3	Score
Consent/ Assent	Parent consent is not documented	Parent consent is documented	Parent consent and student assent (or at minimum informing student) are both documented	
Reason for Referral	No documented reason for referral	Reason for referral is identified but unrelated to counseling goals	The reason for referral is outlined, is congruent with counseling goals, and the referral source is stated, consent and assent are documented	
Relevant Background Information	Background information is disorganized, unrelated to referral and services, and/or relevant information is missing	Background information of the student related to the presenting concern is adequate	Background information is thorough and relevant, aligns with goals, identifies student strengths and challenges	
Counseling Goals	Initial goals are vague, unrelated to services, and/or not measurable	Initial goals are specific and measurable	Initial goals are "SMART" and related to the student(s) needs and services	
Theoretical Orientation	No theoretical orientation identified	Theoretical orientation identified	Theoretical orientation identified and related to counseling services and goals	
Curriculum and Session Structure	Planned curriculum and/or counseling techniques are vague and/or not related to referral and goals	Planned curriculum and/or counseling techniques are detailed	Planned curriculum and/or counseling techniques are evidence-based and detailed with examples of activates included	
Documentation of Sessions	Counseling sessions are poorly documented	Documentation includes an overview of curriculum, topics, and/or activities for each session	Documentation includes an overview of curriculum, topics, and/or activities for each session and reflects on how sessions varied from the pre-planned session outline and structure	
Audio Recording or Transcript	No audio recording or sample transcript	Audio of session is shared or in the case of no consent for audio,	Audio of session is shared or in the case of no consent for audio, specific themes and content areas	

	for content is available	specific themes and content areas are shared	are shared, with a description of the session and specific content to listen for (e.g., challenges in the session, breakthrough moment, tone, etc.)	
Data Collection Methods	No data collection plan presented	Data collection methods are shared	Data collection methods align with the reason for referral and counseling goals	
Data Reporting	No pre-test or post- test data	Pre-test, post-test, and progress monitoring data are presented	Pre-test, post-test, and progress monitoring data are presented and interpreted	
Personal and Professional Boundaries	Candidate does not consistently show appropriate personal and/or professional boundaries	Candidate demonstrates appropriate personal and professional boundaries	Candidate demonstrates appropriate personal and professional boundaries and role- models appropriate boundaries for the child	
Use of Supervision	Candidate does not seek supervision in counseling case and rarely incorporates feedback	Candidate seeks supervision and incorporates some feedback	Candidate regularly seeks supervision, responds well to feedback and incorporates it, demonstrates self-awareness of personal strengths and weaknesses in providing counseling services	
Recommendations	No recommendations are included or recommendations are vague and/or inappropriate	Recommendations for next steps are included and are linked to the reason for referral and goals	Recommendations for next steps are comprehensive, relevant to the counseling goals, and build upon student growth and needs	

Three goals from KA3.3 regarding counseling for internship year created by faculty/candidate together:

1)

2)

3)

Student Signature: ______ Date: ______

Faculty Signature: ______ Date: ______

LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.4 Counseling Case Summary Report

Candidates will complete a counseling project over the course of their practicum experience. The counseling project requirements could be fulfilled by conducting group or individual counseling. The project can be time-specific (e.g., an 8-week social skills group) or ongoing (e.g., meet weekly with a student who has psychological services listed on their IEP over the course of the year). The candidate can run the sessions solo, or co-lead the sessions (e.g., with a supervisor, school counselor, another practicum student). The project should be with the same student(s) over the course of several weeks (as opposed to drop in counseling with rotating students). The candidate will talk with their site supervisor to identify a counseling project that meets the needs of the school/students and aligns with the candidate's interests and skill development. Following the completion of the counseling project, candidates will write a summary report with the following headings detailed in the rubric below. The report should be approximately 3-5 pages single spaced and could be a useful tool for a future counselor to understand the work that the student has already completed in counseling. The Practicum instructor will complete this rubric and go over the results with each candidate, particularly noting candidate strengths and areas for further development. The candidate's areas of strength and of needed improvement will also be highlighted. Those candidates with a mean score of 2.0 or higher are allowed to move on to Internship.

Domain	Needs	Sufficient = 2	Exemplary = 3	Score
	Improvement = 1			
Reason for Referral	No documented reason for referral	Reason for referral is identified but unrelated to counseling goals	The reason for referral is outlined, is congruent with counseling goals, and the referral source is stated, consent and assent are documented	
Relevant Background Information	Background information is disorganized, unrelated to referral, and/or missing relevant information	Background information is related to the presenting concern and is adequate	Background information is thorough and relevant, aligns with goals, identifies student strengths and challenges	
Counseling Goals	Initial goals are vague, unrelated to services, and/or not measurable	Initial goals are specific and measurable	Initial goals are "SMART" and related to the student(s) needs and services	
Summary of Sessions	Sessions are poorly documented and summarized	Sessions are summarized and include an overview of curriculum, topics, and/or activities covered	Sessions are summarized in a comprehensive manner that includes an overview of curriculum, topics, and/or activities covered and would be helpful for a future practitioner or team member	
Summary of Data	No data are included	Pre-test, post-test, and progress monitoring data are presented	Pre-test, post-test, and progress monitoring data are presented and interpreted	
Recommendations	No or vague and/or inappropriate recommendations	Recommendations for next steps are included and are linked to goals	Recommendations for next steps are comprehensive, relevant to the goals, and build upon student growth and needs	

Three goals from KA3.3 regarding counseling for internship year created by faculty/candidate together:

1)	
2)	
3)	
Student Signature:	Date:
Faculty Signature:	_ Date:

LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.5 Practicum Site Supervisor Evaluation of Candidate

Instructions for Site Supervisor: Please use the scale detailed below to rate the practicum candidate's knowledge, skills, and dispositions in the ten NASP training domains listed. Please add any relevant comments and/or goals in each section and meet with the practicum candidate to discuss your responses. During campus supervision meetings with faculty, these results will also be discussed. At the end of Practicum, candidates are expected to attain an average of 2.0 in each domain listed. Thank you for support, mentorship, and supervision!
N—No Opportunity to observe 0—Does not meet criteria 1—Meets criteria minimally/Area for growth 2—Meets criteria appropriately for program/practice level 3—Meets criteria exceptionally/Area of strength
Name of Practicum Candidate (please print):
Practicum Candidate Signature and Date:
Practicum Site Supervisor (please print):
Practicum Site Supervisor Signature and Date:

	Domain 2.1 Data-Based Decision Making					
3.4.1	The candidate is aware of a variety of models and methods to gather information about	N	0	1	2	3
	the whole child regarding behavioral, academic, social and emotional concerns.					
3.4.2	The candidate recognizes the need for team problem-solving and integrating assessment	N	0	1	2	3
	information from multiple sources.					<u> </u>
3.4.3	Under supervision, the candidate can administer academic assessment tools and interpret results per standardized protocol.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.4	Under supervision, the candidate can administer cognitive assessment tools and interpret results per standardized protocol.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.5	Under supervision, the candidate can use assessment and observation data to identify student strengths and weaknesses.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.6	Under supervision, the candidate can use evaluation data to develop a list of interventions appropriate for implementation.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.7	Under supervision, the candidate can utilize data to evaluate the efficacy of an intervention.	N	0	1	2	3
	Domain 2.2 Consultation and Collaboration					
3.4.8	The candidate demonstrates appropriate communication skills necessary to effectively consult with team members.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.9	The candidate consults and coordinates with team members when determining an	N	0	1	2	3
	intervention plan or recommendations for a particular student.					
3.4.10	Under supervision, the candidate has participated in several sessions of academic consultation and/or collaboration.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.11	Under supervision, the candidate has participated in several sessions of behavioral consultation and/or collaboration.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.12	The candidate uses principles of social justice when developing plans for assessment, collaboration with families, and interventions.	N	0	1	2	3
	Domain 2.3 Intervention and Instructional Support to Develop Academic Skills					
3.4.13	The candidate demonstrates an understanding of biological, cultural and social influences on academic skill development.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.14	The candidate can apply learning principles to understand academic assessment and interventions.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.15	Under supervision, the candidate can review cognitive and academic assessment results and determine a course of interventions.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.16	The candidate demonstrates an ability to identify evidence-based instructional strategies/interventions to promote cognitive and academic skills.	N	0	1	2	3

		7				
	Domain 2.4 Interventions and Mental Health Services to Develop Social/Life Skills				1 -	1 -
3.4.17	The candidate demonstrates an understanding of biological, cultural and social	N	0	1	2	3
	influences on behavior and mental health.	ļ			<u> </u>	
3.4.18	Under supervision, the candidate can use behavioral and mental health assessments to identify appropriate goals and interventions for the development of affective, adaptive, and social skills.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.19	Under supervision, the candidate has applied skills in providing direct and indirect	N	0	1	2	3
	services utilizing evidence-based strategies to promote student mental health and	- '		_	-	
	develop social and life skills.					
3.4.20	Under supervision, the candidate demonstrates skills in individual counseling, group	N	0	1	2	3
	counseling, and social/life skills interventions.					
	Domain 2.5: School-Wide Practices to Promote Learning				1	
3.4.21	The candidate is aware of, and engages in, school-wide interventions and practices that	N	0	1	2	3
	promote positive learning environments.					
3.4.22	The candidate demonstrates an understanding of systems theory as it relates to schools	N	0	1	2	3
	and other systems in the community.					
3.4.23	The candidate demonstrates an understanding of school settings as a system and works	N	0	1	2	3
	with others to maintain safe, supportive and effective learning environments for					
	children.					
3.4.24	Under supervision, the candidate is able to work with both the special education and the	N	0	1	2	3
	general education systems to ensure that children's needs are appropriately met.					
	Domain 2.6 Preventative and Responsive Services					
3.4.25	The candidate demonstrated an understanding of and participation in multi-tier	N	0	1	2	3
	intervention and prevention at the school and community levels.					
3.4.26	The candidate is aware of principles and research related to resilience and risk factors in	N	0	1	2	3
	learning and mental health and has demonstrated these skills in practice.					
3.4.27	The candidate has the ability to provide or contribute to prevention and intervention	N	0	1	2	3
	programs such as individual counseling, group counseling, or problem-solving groups.					
3.4.28	The candidate is effective in dealing with crisis situations, showing a strong perception	N	0	1	2	3
	of others' views, and is able to collaborate with a crisis team.					
	Domain 2.7 Family-School Collaboration Services					
3.4.29	The candidate demonstrates an understanding of family systems, including the	N	0	1	2	3
	influences of family on development, learning, and behavior.					
3.4.30	The candidate demonstrates an understanding of methods to engage and involve families	N	0	1	2	3
2 4 21	in education and service delivery.	N.T	•	1		1
3.4.31	Under supervision, the candidate works effectively with home, school and community	N	0	1	2	3
2.4.22	members to provide comprehensive services to children.	N T		1	-	1
3.4.32	Under supervision, the candidate works effectively to gather information about the	N	0	1	2	3
	context and lives of school families and apply this information to their work in schools.					
3.4.33	Domain 2.8 Diversity in Development and Learning The candidate respects and values cultural, familial, and individual differences,	N.T	Ι Δ	1	12	12
3.4.33	including those involving age, gender, race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sexual	N	0	1	2	3
	orientation, disability, language, and socioeconomic status.					
3.4.34	Under supervision, the candidate demonstrates an understanding of development and	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.34	psychopathology, and is able to use theory and research when developing interventions	11	U	1		3
	for children.					
3.4.35	The candidate has the ability to work with all people in public schools with respect,	N	0	1	2	3
3.7.33	thoughtfulness, and sensitivity.	11	U	1	-	3
3.4.36	The candidate demonstrates the ability to respectfully discuss and address individual	N	0	1	2	3
2.7.30	differences, abilities, disabilities and other diverse characteristics.	1	"	1		
3.4.37	Under supervision, the candidate demonstrates skills in identifying and eliminating	N	0	1	2	3
J.T.J1	biological, social, cultural, ethnic, experiential, socio-economic, gender-related, and	1,4		1	~	
	linguistic biases to ensure positive outcomes for all.					
	inigation of the original positive outcomes for this.		1	1	1	1
	Domain 2.9 Research and Program Evaluation					
3.4.38	Domain 2.9 Research and Program Evaluation The candidate has a working knowledge of statistical methods of analysis and how they	N	0	1	2	3

3.4.39	The candidate has knowledge of various service models and methods for evaluating	N	0	1	2	3
	research designs for use in schools.			<u> </u>		
3.4.40	The candidate is able to utilize intervention data to evaluate program effectiveness and make recommendations for improvement.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.41	The candidate demonstrates an ability to plan and use research to improve services for	N	0	1	2	3
	groups of children in schools.					
3.4.42	The candidate is able to examine and utilize available research to better understand and	N	0	1	2	3
	address issues children may face in schools and learning.					
	Domain 2.10 Legal, Ethical, and Professional Practice					
3.4.43	The candidate demonstrates ability to understand and apply ethical and legal	N	0	1	2	3
	requirements and professional standards.					
3.4.44	The candidate relates to peers, professors, supervisors and others in a respectful, ethical and professional manner that is consistent with program mission and standards.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.45	The candidate recognizes the boundaries of their particular competencies and the	N	0	1	2	3
	limitations of their expertise and takes responsibility for compensating for deficiencies.	- `		1	-	
3.4.46	The candidate is thoughtfully and effectively engaged in courses, and in the overall	N	0	1	2	3
010	curriculum and program and contributes positively	- `		1	-	
3.4.47	The candidate consistently shows strong and effective skills in verbal, nonverbal, and	N	0	1	2	3
<i></i>	written communication.	- `			-	
3.4.48	The candidate is consistently organized and manages time well.	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.49	The candidate follows professionally recognized conflict resolution processes, seeking	N	0	1	2	3
	to informally address the issue first with individual(s) with whom the conflict exists.					
3.4.50	The candidate identifies with the profession of school psychology, conducts oneself in	N	0	1	2	3
	a professional manner (appearance, attitude, communication, etc.), and is concerned					
	with their own professional growth					
3.4.51	The candidate takes initiative, is dependable and responsible, and is concerned with their own professional growth	N	0	1	2	3
3.4.52	The candidate demonstrates the ability to receive, integrate and utilize feedback from	N	0	1	2	3
	peers, teachers, and supervisors and is able to give such feedback respectfully					
3.4.53	The candidate exhibits appropriate levels of self-assurance and confidence in one's own	N	0	1	2	3
	ability and balances this with a healthy sense of humility and openness to learning					
3.4.54	The candidate demonstrates a continuing capacity for openness to points of view,	N	0	1	2	3
	theories, experiences and perspectives different than their own in relationship with					
	peers and others in supervisory or instructional positions.					
3.4.55	The candidate considers the impact of her/his actions on the well being of others and	N	0	1	2	3
	the group (e.g., cohort, program, agency) as a whole.					
3.4.56	The candidate demonstrates appropriate emotional self-regulation in interpersonal	N	0	1	2	3
	relationships with supervisors, faculty, peers, and others.					

Three goals/comments from KA3.4 for internship year created by Site Supervisor and Candidate together:

1)	
2)	
3)	
Candidate Signature:	_ Date:
Site Supervisor Signature:	Date:

LC-SPSY Practicum Evaluation of Site and Supervisor by Candidate

We value your opinions of the effectiveness of your practicum site and site supervisor. At the end of your practicum, please answer the following questions anonymously. These results will help our program and future students in making wise selections of sites and supervisor. Please check the appropriate responses and add relevant written comments for each item below.

Date:									
On-site S	Supervisor(s):								
Placement Site/ District:									
	1. How would you rate your supervision overall? Please consider the support and instruction that you were given throughout the year.								
	Excellent	Ver	y Good	Adequate		Poor			
Please d	escribe some of the m	nost helpfu	l aspects of the sup	pervision you re	eceived.				
	escribe some of the le			·					
	w much time did your ervision is to take plac				edback and in	struction? Please note that			
	han adequate than one hour every w	/eek)	Adequate (one hour, each v	week)	Less than ad (less than 1	lequate hour weekly)			
3. How	would you rate the su	pport you 1	received from scho	ool site/district s	staff?				
Excelle	ent	Very Goo	od	Adequate		Less than adequate			
Please describe some of the most helpful aspects of the site(s).									
Please describe some of the least helpful aspects of the site(s).									
Other co									

LC-SPSY Practicum Permission to Record (Sample)

Date			
Dear Parent or Guardian,			
Clark College, working under the providing counseling services	he supervision ofes to your child	ol Psychology Practicum Student at Lewis, School Psychologist. This yea [add a brief description abo e.g., per IEP, individual or group, specific	ır I will out
of our conversation during the o	course of our counseling se to address my developing	here may be times when I plan to record poessions. These confidential recordings wou skills as a school psychologist. I will destr	ıld be
		ng sessions? Please sign and return this for ppy to speak with you about this now or	m with
My supervisor and I can be read Thank you for the opportunity t	ched ato work with your child,	· 	
Practicum Candidate School Psychology Program Lewis and Clark College			
I give permission for my child's	s counseling sessions to be	e recorded and used as described.	
Signature of Parent/Guardian _			
Phone			

LC-SPSY Transition Form 3: Practicum Completion and Internship Approval

LC-SPSY Candidate Name and Date		
In order to successfully complete the Practicum Year of the LC-SP register for SPSY 582: School Psychology Internship, each LC-SPS following verifications:		
1) Practicum Year Completion Candidate has met with SPSY 580 instructor to document and disc	uss successful com	pletion of the following:
SPSY 580 assignments and fieldwork experiences		
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.1 Assessment/Intervention	on	
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.2 Consultation		
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.3 and KA3.4 Counseling		
LC-SPSY Practicum CCE Rubric: KA3.5 Prac. Site Supervisor E	valuation of Candi	date
LC-SPSY Practicum Evaluation of Site/Supervisor by Candidate		
LC-SPSY Practicum Summary of Hours Report		
2) Program Evaluation and Ethical Guidelines Candidate confirms that all required LC-SPSY program coursewor Plan has been successfully completed with a grade of B or better by WebAdvisor (under Academic Profile) to confirm that no grade lo Candidate also confirms that the NASP Ethical Guidelines have be practicum and will continue to be adhered to in internship, and that internship the Candidate will immediately notify and make plans to supervisors. LC-SPSY Candidate signature and date	y attaching a Progr wer than a B- has l en read, that they v if an ethical dilem	am Evaluation from been received. were adhered to in ama arises during
3) Documentation and Approval for Internship Candidate has created a packet of the following required paperwork SPSY Clinical Coordinator Elena Diamond. This packet must be coappointment.		
Documentation For Practicum	Admin Initial	Notes
LC-SPSY Internship Site Agreement Documentation of Professional Liability Insurance		
Documentation of Froiessional Liability insurance		
Candidate has been in contact with the LC-SPSY Clinical Coordin. Internship site and supervisor as well as permission to get the Internship		
LC-SPSY Clinical Coordinator signature/email and date		